
 

SDG&E’s 2017 DRP DEMO C 

Questions & Answers (FAQs) 

 

1. General 
 

1.1. Does SDG&E prefer 100% baseload renewable power? 

We have no preference on technology.  All technologies must meet the requirements in 

this RFO.  

 

1.2. The RFO schedule has CPUC approval in late April, with a delivery date 

on June 1, 2018.  Will it be moved or is there an absolute date available?  

For projects that are supposed to come online by June 1, 2018, they must be online by 

that date to meet the system reliability and demonstration requirements, there is no 

leeway.  

 

1.3. What is the Primary reason for the tradition solution?  With Peak loads on 

the system what will be the contribution to peak loads? 

The primary reason for these resources is load growth in this area. 

 

1.4. What needs to be online by the June 1st, 2018 timeline? 

The entire capacity for 2018 needs to be online by June 1, 2018. 

 

1.5. For an Energy Storage Resource, does the RFO require us to put charged 

energy back on the grid? Or can we sell it to a Third Party? 

The resource will have to respond when dispatched by SDG&E’s distribution operations 

team and provide the required capacity.  SDG&E will only be buying the resource’s 

distribution capacity, you may sell all other attributes to other parties. 

 

1.6. Are there specific times my energy storage device must charge? 

All energy storage devices will require submittal as either WDAT or Rule 21 

interconnection.  During the application process, the duration for charging the energy 

storage device is assessed to determine any potential limitations. 

 



 

1.7. Is SDG&E bidding into this RFO as well?  

SDG&E has formed an internal group that may bid into this.  There are controls in place 

to ensure non-public information related to this RFO is not shared with or utilized by this 

group.  All bidder’s will be treated equally and be evaluated on an equal footing.  This 

process is being overseen by the independent evaluator.  If you would like to contact the 

internal SDG&E group, please send an email to LAbcede@semprautilities.com  

 

1.8. Is this RFO primarily geared towards Distributor/Manufactures of said 

products (EE, PV etc.) or Installers of the products? 

This RFO is for companies that will own and operate the facilities; however, that can also 

be the same companies that install and manufactures the products or they can work with 

the owner/operators.  

 

1.9. I would like to share my information with other bidders/Can you put me in 

touch with other bidders. 

No, the RFO states: Except with the prior written consent of SDG&E, respondents may 

not disclose (other than by attendance alone at any meeting to which more than one 

respondent is invited by SDG&E) to any other respondent their participation in this RFO, 

and respondents may not disclose, collaborate on, or discuss with any other respondent, 

offer strategies, or the substance of offers, including without limitation the price or any 

other terms or conditions of any indicative or final offer. 

 

1.10. Is there a DBE goal for this RFO? 

SDG&E encourages DBEs to participate and will take this into account where possible but 

there are no specific requirements or goals in this RFO. 

 

1.11. What is CREZ? 

CREZ stands for Competitive Renewable Energy Zone.  This is part of the California 

Renewable Energy Transmission Initiative (RETI).  More information can be found below: 

 

1. CEC RETI (1.0) CREZ 
i. https://databasin.org/datasets/7e64e413f44c46d8b67a125e4587b978   

ii. https://databasin.org/maps/9f1b0370b3a64147b3f07c996f5e58af  
iii. http://www.energy.ca.gov/reti/documents/   
iv. http://www.energy.ca.gov/reti/documents/maps2/CREZ_Map.pdf  

 
2. RETI 2.0 Databasin  

i. https://reti.databasin.org/    
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2. Circuit/Customer Information 
 

2.1. Will we be shown a map of exactly where the circuit is and how do we 

confirm if a residential or commercial customer is on that circuit? 

Prior to winning a bid, detailed maps are not available due to privacy and grid security 

issues.  After winning a bid and executing an NDA, SDG&E will work with the winning 

bidder to provide the necessary detailed information for their project. For DR and EE, 

each customer’s bill has their circuit number on it, and the customers can provide this to 

you prior to winning a bid.   

 

To see the latest maps, go to: 

https://www.sdge.com/generation-interconnections/enhanced-integration-
capacity-analysis-ica 
 

As described in the RFO, customer data is available to the winning bidders, upon request, 

after contracts are signed, including SDG&E’s non-disclosure agreement, in accordance 

with the standard privacy practices of SDG&E.  For more information go to (the link which 

is also in the RFO): 

https://energydata.sdge.com/showDataAccessAndRelease 

 

Certain criteria must be met by the recipient of the data, including meeting system and 

cyber security requirements to protect customer data, so please read carefully and note 

that by signing a contract with SDG&E is not a guarantee of meeting all requirements for 

data.   If a contract is signed and requirements are met, SDG&E can provide more 

comprehensive data to the vendor.  

 

2.2. For the circuits, if the bidding is tailored to individual circuits, how do we 

get to the number of customers on each circuit, not individual information 

on each customer but total number of customers? 

See response above to 2.1.  

 

2.3. The Utility’s GIS mapping link for two of the circuits don’t appear when 

they have been clicked on, will that be updated? 

Those maps have been updated as of Monday October 30, 2017. 
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2.4. Does SDG&E have information at the Distribution level on how these 

programs are allocated? For example, if our program is 10 MW of 

capacity, are those 10 MW already assumed to be in the forecast, like an 

Energy Efficiency curtailment program for example? 

SDG&E’s forecast has considered SDG&E’s current EE and DR programs and allocated 

them at a distribution level.   

 

2.5. How many of the commercial customers are industrial >200 kW?  How 

many of the commercial customers are in the MUSH market segment? 

Please see the responses above and the RFO protocols for the information SDG&E is 

releasing about the customers on these circuits.  

 

 

 

  



 

3. Eligibility 
 

3.1. Are we able to offer competing programs? 

The portion of your program that is not like existing programs can be counted as 

incremental and will qualify for this RFO.  The portion of your program that is like an 

existing program, would not be incremental and would therefore not count for this RFO. 

 

3.2. For EE offers is it acceptable that the Offeror not own or operate the 

equipment associated with the EE measure? 

The contractual relationship will be between SDG&E and the Respondent. The 

 Respondent must be responsible for making sure the project delivers the energy  savings 

 as agreed upon in the contract. The Respondent may subcontract out work or use 

 different ownership structures to achieve this, but remains responsible for the delivery 

 of the energy savings. 

 

3.3. For an energy storage offer, can you confirm whether a project 

needs to have both site control and permit applications submitted by 

the bid due date or just site control? 

The respondent must show reasonable progress towards developing their project so that 

SDG&E can have confidence the project is viable.  This includes at least having land 

options and having started the permitting process by the time that bids are submitted. 

 

3.4. Appendix B, per each circuit, there are Annual Two-hour MW 

Commitments that must be available at any time of year for planned 

maintenance or unplanned emergencies. (In yesterday’s bidders 

conference deck, these commitments were referred to as ‘Exceptional 

Dispatch Windows’ on Slide 22.) Would you please confirm that this 2-

hour MW requirement may happen on any day at any time during the 

year?   For example, on Circuit 298, the minimum requirements show that 

MWs are only required from 10 a.m. through 6:59 p.m. from June through 

October… however, is it true that the Annual Two-hour MW 

Commitment/Exceptional Dispatch Window may be called in January from 

midnight through 2:00 a.m.? 

Yes, this can happen at any time on any day, even during the stated June through 

Octover dispatch windows, not to exceed the maximum MW for the year and circuit in 

question.  Per the example provided, the DER on 298 may be called once per year in 

January from Midnight through 2:00 a.m. 

 



 

3.5. Is SDG&E seeking a different project for each circuit, or could one project 

of sufficient size and interconnected to a given circuit meet the needs of 

more than one circuit? For example, could a project interconnected to 

Circuit 597 meet the capacity needs of 295 and 298?  

A project interconnected to Circuit 295 could not provide distribution capacity to 597 

and/or 298.  However, that project can consist of multiple technologies (e.g. solar plus 

batter plus DR), although SDG&E is only willing to sign one contract.   

 

3.6. For an Energy Storage offer, although energy and A/S can be sold 

separately, and therefore you provide only a MW not MWH need, does 

this effectively mean, however, that the system must be sized to meet the 

sum of the daily hourly MW needs in each year? For example, in 2020 for 

Circuit 597 coming online after June 1, 2018, the peak need is 0.98 MW at 

hour 20:00, but the total capacity need, summing all hours of the day, is 

3.23 MW. Does that mean the resources’ minimum size must be 0.98 MW, 

3.23 MWh?  

While the resource might not be dispatched all the time, SDG&E requires resources to 

have the ability to be dispatched every day during all hours shown in the deferral 

window.   In the case of energy storage for the circuit in the example decribed, SDG&E 

also estimates that the total MWhs would be 3.23 MWh. 

 

3.7. Can natural gas be purchased from SDG&E to create electricity through 

generation? If so, what is the cost per therm? 

Please review the RFO protocols on eligibility requirements of fossil fueled generation to 

make sure your resource qualifies.  In general, resources that use natural gas can 

purchase that commodity through SDG&E; however, those purchases will not be part of 

the contract from this RFO.  SDG&E is only purchasing distribution capacity from this RFO 

and won’t entertain a tolling agreement structure.  For potential new gas service and 

applicable rates, please contact SDG&E’s customer service.  Please keep in mind that the 

price of natural gas fluctuates from year to year so SDG&E cannot guarantee what those 

rates will be in the future. 

 

3.8. Is fuel switching allowed? 

In general, yes; however, please see the RFO protocols on eligible requirements of fossil 

fueled generation.  

 

 

  



 

4. Evaluation 
 

4.1. With Circuit 597, there are two separate dates, are these evaluated 

differently?   

The earlier online date for circuit 597 would defer a cutover project and a circuit build-

out.  The later online date, will just defer the circuit build-out.  Offers for each will be 

evaluated separately but using the same evaluation methodology. 

 

4.2. Will SDG&E evaluate bids for Circuit 295 and 298 that cannot meet the 

June 1, 2018 on-line date, if we include the earliest we can bring our 

project online. 

No, those offers would be non-conforming.  

 

4.3. How do I submit offers for multiple circuits?  What if I want to do all three 

only? 

Please submit a single offer form per circuit per variation.  If you would like to offer a 

combined package for all three circuits, please submit three offer forms, one per circuit, 

and put in the offer forms (in the appropriate box near the top of the Pricing worksheet) 

whether they are mutually exclusive or inclusive of other offers. 

 

4.4. Since EE customers and potential EE measures will not be identified by 

the offer due date is it acceptable to insert TBD in some areas of the Offer 

Form? 

While it is acceptable to answer N/A if the question does not relate to your resource (for 

example asking for a solar resource report from an EE project), the respondents must fill 

in all questions that are related to their product.  For example, while you may not know 

exactly what customers will be in your program, an EE program should have a general 

idea of the number of customers they intend to target and the EE measures they are 

going to use to achieve the energy savings. 

 

4.5. Can you give any more details about a traditional solution, specifically the 

different costs we would be competing with? 

SDG&E will not be releasing the costs beforehand. The traditional solution is noted in the 

RFO, specifically in SDG&E’s Advice Letter 3052.  

 

http://regarchive.sdge.com/tm2/pdf/3052-E.pdf


 

4.6. What is the rate that will be paid for each kWh used during peak hours?  

Will SDG&E be willing to pay for energy outside of peak hours? 

SDG&E is only purchasing distribution capacity in this RFO and will not be paying for 

energy or other project attributes.   Respondents are responsible for pricing their 

projects.  

 
  



 

5. Interconnection 
 

5.1. Could a fast track project making a new interconnection request in 

November make the June 1st, 2018 COD deadline? 

It would be tight to complete, and depends heavily on location, and distribution 

upgrades. SDG&E is willing to work hard to try and make it happen but cannot provide 

any guarantees.  In general, this pilot is partially designed to test the process and ability 

of DER meet these short RFO timelines. 

 


